
 

Page | 1  

 

  
 
 
 

 
 
 
Thursday, October 15, 2015 - 6:30 p.m.                           Assembly Chambers, 213 Haines Hwy. 
 

1. CALL TO ORDER / PLEDGE TO THE FLAG  

2. ROLL CALL  

3. APPROVAL OF AGENDA 

4. APPROVAL OF MINUTES: September 10, 2015 

5. PUBLIC COMMENTS  [Items not scheduled for public hearing] 

6. CHAIRMAN’S REPORT 

7. STAFF REPORT 

A. Planning & Zoning Report 

8. PUBLIC HEARINGS:  

A. Haines Animal Rescue Kennel (HARK) – 50’ Patent Vacation – Action Item – HARK has requested the Planning 

Commission approve a 50’ patent vacation within Tract 2 per the subdivision plat of Lot 40, Section 2, Township 
31S, Range 59E, C.R.M. Alaska Department of Natural Resources (ADNR) has no interest in the patent reservation 
proposed to be vacated, and they consider it to be entirely managed by the Borough. Possible Motion: Approve 

HARK’s 50’ patent vacation request.  

B. Michael Wilson – Heliport Conditional Use Proposal – Action Item – Property owner Wilson has requested the 

Planning Commission approve a conditional use permit to allow the installation of a helipad at 36 Mile Haines 
Highway. Possible Motion: Approve Wilson’s heliport conditional use proposal.  

C. Hill Top Subdivision Preliminary Long Plat Approval – C-USS-A2-2716 – Action Item – Highland Estates, Inc. 

submitted an updated preliminary long plat subdivision through its agent Dave Smith. The commission will process 
the preliminary plat pursuant to the standards set forth for special conditions permits and the standards set forth in 
HBC 18.100. Possible Motion: Approve Hill Top Subdivision Preliminary Long Plat. 

9. UNFINISHED BUSINESS:  

A. Replat of Primary School Subdivision – Action Item – This is unfinished business from March 12, 2015 
Agenda. The surveyor revised and prepared the plat for commission approval. Possible Motion: Approve Re-

Subdivision Plat of Primary School Subdivision.   

10. NEW BUSINESS:  

A. Historic District/Building Review: None 

B. Haines Borough Code Amendments:  
1. Clarify “Temporary Commercial Structure” – Discussion Item – Commercial trailers are becoming more 

prevalent in town. The use of temporary commercial trailers is not currently addressed in the Borough code. 
Staff is seeking advice from the commission.  

C. Project Updates: None 

D. Other New Business: None 

11. COMMISSION COMMENTS 

12. CORRESPONDENCE 

13. SCHEDULE MEETING DATE 
A.      Regular Meeting – Thursday, November 12, 2015 6:30 p.m. 

14. ADJOURNMENT  

 
 

Haines Borough 
Planning Commission 

Regular Meeting Agenda 

COMMISSIONERS: 
 

ROB GOLDBERG, CHAIR 
LEE HEINMILLER, VICE-CHAIR 

ROBERT VENABLES 
HEATHER LENDE 

DON TURNER III 
BRENDA JOSEPHSON 

ROB MILLER  
 
 

 
 



 September 10, 2015 
Page 1 of 3 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

1. CALL TO ORDER/PLEDGE TO THE FLAG – Chairman Goldberg called the meeting to 
order at 6:30 p.m. in Assembly Chambers and led the pledge to the flag. 

2. ROLL CALL – Present: Chairman Rob Goldberg, Commissioners Lee Heinmiller, 
Heather Lende, Brenda Josephson, Rob Miller, Don Turner III, and Robert Venables 
(called in). 

Staff Present: Jan Hill/Mayor, David Sosa/Manager, Shawn Bell/Harbormaster, and 
Tracy Cui/Planning and Zoning Technician III. 

Also Present: Mike Case (Assembly liaison), Diana Lapham (Assembly member), Dick 
Somerville (PND, called in), Bill Kurz, Debra Schnabel, John Sickman, Ardy Miller, 
Dave Nanney, Adam McMahan, Emily McMahan, Evelyna Vignola, David Smith, 
Jeremy Stephens, Tresham Gregg, Joe Parnell, Sean Gaffney, and others.  

3. APPROVAL OF AGENDA 

Goldberg suggested moving 10D1 to be the first public hearing item. The other 
commissioners agreed.  

Motion: Lende moved to “approve the agenda as amended.” Josephson seconded it. 
The motion carried unanimously. 

4. APPROVAL OF MINUTES – August 13, 2015 Regular Meeting Minutes 

Motion: Miller moved to “approve the August 13, 2015 minutes.” Heinmiller seconded 
it. The motion carried unanimously.  

5. PUBLIC COMMENTS 

Schnabel spoke in favor of the “shops on wheels” commercial development on behalf of 
the commerce committee. 

6. CHAIRMAN’S REPORT  

Goldberg reported updates on the picture point project.   

7. STAFF REPORTS  

A. Planning & Zoning Staff Report 

Cui reported monthly permits and updates on projects.  

8. PUBLIC HEARINGS  

A. South Portage Cove Harbor Expansion Project 

Goldberg opened the hearing at 6:40 p.m., and closed the hearing at 8:10 p.m.  
Kurz, Schnabel, Nanney, Gregg, Parnell, and others commented. The 
commission determined that the project design meets the goals of the 
Comprehensive Plan and is consistent with the current planning and zoning 

Haines Borough 
Planning Commission Meeting 

September 10, 2015 

MINUTES Draft  

  4



 September 10, 2015 
Page 2 of 3 

requirements. There was uncertainty about this at the meeting, and how the 
regulation might affect the design of the harbor. The commissioners think it is wise to 
protect the Borough’s investment before corrosion begins. A suggestion was made 
that funds from the Raw Fish Tax be directed toward purchasing and installing the 
anodes. Miller said that Mr. Harvey Smith could provide the Borough a second 
opinion of the design at no charge. It is possible that he could suggest changes that 
could make the project better or save money. 
Motion: Goldberg moved to “recommend the Assembly (1) seek a review of PND's 
design from Harvey Smith, the State Coastal Engineer; (2) determine the Coast 
Guard regulations for boating in proximity to cruise ships; (3) install sacrificial anodes 
on the wave barrier upon installation; (4) move Lookout Park to a spot designated on 
the plan by PND Engineers. The motion carried 5-1 with Lende opposed. (Venables 
left during the hearing.) 

B. Hill Top Subdivision Preliminary Long Plat Approval  
Josephson recused herself. 
The commission reviewed the design of the subdivision plans. The design drawings 
were done in 1997. Borough code has changed since that time, especially in the 
standards for roads and sewer systems. Many of the aspects of the subdivision's 
design were found to be out of compliance with the current code. There is also a 
cloudy title on part of the property. The commission decided to return the plat to the 
applicant for corrections, and encouraged the applicant to clear the title to the entire 
property. A committee consisting of Commissioners Turner and Lende was formed 
to work with the applicant to make the necessary changes before the preliminary plat 
is re-submitted. 

9. UNFINISHED BUSINESS – None  

10. NEW BUSINESS  

A. Historic District/Building Review: None 

B. Haines Borough Code Amendments  

1. Clarify “Temporary Commercial Structure” 

The commission postponed this topic to its next regular meeting. 

2. Nonconforming Lot for A Public Utility Project 
Cui said that the Borough plans an upgrade to the Piedad Springs water 
source. In order to proceed with the project, the Borough needs to purchase a 
small portion of property. However, the purchase will result in the creation of a 
nonconforming lot, which is less than one acre. Staff drafted an ordinance 
which will allow a nonconforming lot be created as a result of the Borough 
acquiring a portion of a lot to be used exclusively for public utility purposes. 
There is no requirement for Title 18 amendments to originate with the 
Planning Commission. The motion was made.  

 C.  Project Updates – None 

D. Other New Business  

1. John Sickman – Appeal to the Planning Commission 
Mr. Sickman was denied a building permit for a residence in the Skyline 
Subdivision because Borough staff and the Manager determined that the 
design exceeded the 30' height restriction. HBC 18.80.030(B) states: "Height 



 September 10, 2015 
Page 3 of 3 

is measured from the average grade of the footprint of the structure to the 
highest point on the structure, measured at the center of each of the four 
exterior walls." It was determined that there was a difference in the way that 
Borough staff calculated the average grade from the way that Mr. Sickman's 
architect calculated average grade. Borough staff measured from the ground 
at the center of the four walls to the highest point of the structure. The 
architect determined average grade by taking a point at the highest point of 
the wall, and a point at the lowest end of the wall, connecting those points with 
a line, and then measuring from a point on that line at the center of the wall. If 
the slope of the grade on the sides of the building was even and consistent, 
these two methods of measurement result in the same number. However, in 
Mr. Sickman's design, one side of the building is excavated to allow room for a 
garage. The slope drops sharply from the high end to a pad and remains flat 
for the rest of the building. Measuring from the ground in the center of the wall, 
instead of from the average grade, gives a greater height. HBC 18.20.020 
defines “Building height” as the maximum vertical dimension of a building 
which is measured from a horizontal plane intersecting the mean building 
grade and measured at the center of each of the four exterior walls, but not 
including radio antennas, water towers, church spires, structures or 
enclosures constructed primarily for mechanical equipment and similar 
building mechanical features. This definition makes it clear that the height is 
measured from a horizontal plane intersecting the mean building grade, and 
not from the ground. 

Motion: Miller moved to “overturn the manager’s decision.” Josephson 
seconded it. The motion carried 6-0 with Venables absent. 

The commission agreed that the definition of height in the code needs to be 
refined. 

11. COMMISSION COMMENTS  

12. CORRESPONDENCE - None 

13. SET MEETING DATES 

A.  Regular Meeting—Thursday, October 15, 2015.  

14. ADJOURNMENT– 11:45 p.m.   



Staff Report for October 15, 2015 

1. Permits Issued Since September, 2015  

DATE OWNER/AGENT TAX ID LOT BLK SUBDIVISION DEVELOPMENT ZONE 

9/14/15 Marilyn Harrold C-MEA-02-3000 30   Meadowland Sub. ROW_New Driveway SR 

9/15/15 Barbara Blackwell C-STR-02-3110 WEST1/2   SEC2, T31S, R59E, CRM Wheelchair Ramp RMU 

9/16/15 Dustin Craney C-SEC-35-1640 16D   Replat of Lot 16, SEC35, T30S, R59E, CRM Storage Shed SR 

9/18/15 John Sickman C-SKY-0C-0100 1 C Skyline Estates Sub. SFR SR 

9/23/15 Michael Falvey C-TNS-21-2100 21 21 Haines Townsite SFR WF 

9/23/15 Michael Falvey C-TNS-21-2100 21 21 Haines Townsite 

New Water & Sewer 

Services  WF 

9/28/15 Sarah Jaymot C-MIS-0F-0400 4 F Mission Sub. 

Enclosed 

Awning_Temporary Use C 

9/30/15 Todd Blum C-CIA-01-0400 1 4 Chilkoot Inlet Sub. ROW_New Driveway RR 

 

2. Citizen Complaints/Enforcement Orders  

 The Borough received several citizen complaints stating that one property in the Mud Bay district has a web site advertising a structure that is 

large enough for a dance floor, a band, and perfect for large parties and commercial events. Staff conducted a site visit on September 18. This 

development has been evaluated against the existing vocation rental conditional use permit. Notification was sent out to the owner on 

September 25. 

 The Borough received a citizen complaint stating that a fire-damaged residence is a public hazard. Staff conducted a site visit on September 

28, and determined that the allegation is not substantiated. Fire occurred in spring of 2014, fire worn out one portion of the building. Property 

owner has been making effort to remove all fire damages. So far, inside is stripped to stud walls with furniture, cabinets, sheet rock, and floor 

covering removed. Also, the placement of warning signage that prevents non-authorized trespassing. The premises were secure and would 

require forced entry to get inside. Evidence that have been found the owner is making effort in minimizing the hazard to the neighborhood. 

 The Borough received a citizen complaint related to neighbor disputes over a common access easement. Staff is currently investigating the 

matter.  

  

7



8A









  
 

October 5, 2015 

 

«PRIMARYOWNER» 

«ADDRESS» 

«CITY», «STATE» «ZIPCODE» 

 

Re:  50’ Patent Vacation Petition 

Haines Animal Rescue Kennel (HARK); Tract 2 per Subdivision Plat of Lot 40, Sec. 2, T.31S., 

R.59E., C.R.M. 

 

Dear Land Owner, 

 

Haines Borough records show that you own property within 200 feet of the above-listed property.   

In order to plan for the construction of a Veterinary Clinic, Haines Animal Rescue Kennel (H.A.R.K.) has 

requested the Planning Commission approve a 50’ patent vacation request within Tract 2, per the 

subdivision plat of Lot 40, Sec. 2, T.31S., R.59E., C.R.M. 

 

The Haines Borough Planning Commission will hold a public hearing on the matter at the next regular 

Planning Commission meeting. The meeting will be held at 6:30 p.m. at the Haines Borough Assembly 

Chambers on Thursday, October 15, 2015.  As an owner of property within 200 feet of the above-listed 

property you are being notified that you are invited to attend and comment at the meeting. If you have any 

questions on the matter please contact the Borough. 

 

Sincerely, 

 

 

 

Tracy Cui 

Planning and Zoning Technician III 

Phone: (907)766-2231 Ext 23 

xcui@haines.ak.us 

 

 

 
HAINES BOROUGH, ALASKA 
P.O. BOX 1209 

HAINES, AK  99827 
(907) 766-2231 FAX (907) 766-2716 

 

mailto:xcui@haines.ak.us


PRIMARYOWNER ADDRESS CITY STATE ZIPCODE
DAN ELDREDGE 4700 LONE BEAR LANE SW PORT ORCHARD WA 98367
DEAN RISLEY BOX 1012 HAINES AK 99827
MARK MITCHELTREE BOX 1036 HAINES AK 99827
JOYCE STOCKBRIDGE BOX 1093 HAINES AK 99827
DON HOLGATE BOX 301 HAINES AK 99827
LYLE HUFF BOX 347 HAINES AK 99827
RICHARD COOK BOX 671 HAINES AK 99827
DARLENE WALTON BOX 755 HAINES AK 99827
LUCY WELLES HARRELL BOX 889 HAINES AK 99827



 

HAINES BOROUGH 

Planning & Zoning 

P.O. Box 1209 

Haines, AK 99827-1209 

907-766-2231 Ext. 23 

907-766-2716 (fax) 

 

 

 

October 8, 2015 

To: Haines Borough Planning Commission  
 
Re:  Michael Wilson Heliport Conditional Use Proposal  
      35 Mile Haines Highway; 3-HHY-36-3426; General Use Zone 

 
Property owner Michael Wilson requested the Planning Commission approve a Conditional Use 
Permit to allow the installation of one helipad on his property. HBC 18.70.030(D) (5) allows “heliports” 
in the general use zone with a conditional use permit. The application has been determined to be 
complete because it contains all of the information required by HBC 18.40.030(A) (1)-(8).  

 
Under HBC 18.50.040, there are eight criteria to be considered in deciding whether to grant a 
conditional use permit. Before a conditional use permit is approved, the commission must find that 
each of the following is met. I have provided my thoughts on each one. 

1. This use is so located on the site as to avoid undue noise and other nuisances and dangers. 
 
The property is one 10.4 acre lot. There are three vacant lots directly adjacent to Wilson’s 
property. The ones immediately to the west and east are state land; the one immediately to the 
north is also Wilson’s property. On 10/05, surrounding property owners within 200 feet were 
notified. Staff has not received any comments from these property owners. The proposed 
helipad is situated on an upper terrace in the middle of the lot as far away from the property 
line as possible. The nearest residence is located approximate 0.75 mile away. 
 

2. The development of the use is such that the value of the adjoining property will not be 
significantly impaired. 
 
This is subjective both in general terms and in specific terms. Historical studies as well as real 
estate appraisal guidelines indicate that property values are not affected due to the proximity of 
a heliport. The value is based on sales in the area.  
 

3. The size and scale of the use is such that existing public services and facilities are adequate to 
serve the proposed use. 
 
There is currently a residence on the property with an accommodation facility including a well, 
septic system, restrooms, and kitchen facilities. The applicant plans to build a lodge on an 
existing 40’ by 60’ foundation if this heliport CUP is issued. Per an email correspondence with 

8B



property owner Wilson dated 10/07, “…we would investigate the existing well, septic and 
foundation are adequate before we start building”. 

 
4. The specific development scheme of the use is consistent and in harmony with the 

comprehensive plan and surrounding land uses. 
 
The Haines Borough Comprehensive Plan currently classifies the proposed property as Rural 

Settlement. The section of Haines Borough 2025 Comprehensive Plan pertaining to the Rural 

Settlement land use classification states… “The Rural Settlement Land Designation is large-lot 

residential living outside of downtown where the lack of public water and sewer requires large 

lots so that wastewater discharge does not harm neighboring properties or the environment. In 

these areas a more rural lifestyle is valued and protected (through zoning) from incompatible 

and disruptive activities.” (Haines Borough 2025 Comprehensive Plan, Page 153). The 

proposed use may not seem to be in harmony with the comprehensive plan. While the 

proposed use may not seem to be in harmony with the comprehensive plan, it does appear to 

be consistent with the surrounding existing commercial use (33 Mile Roadhouse). An area 

around the 33-mile roadhouse is designated on the Future Growth maps for Commercial 

development. The goal is overtime to concentrate commercial activity in a few discrete areas 

rather than having it develop strip-mall style all along the Haines Highway.  

 

5. The granting of the conditional use will not be harmful to the public safety, health or welfare.  
 
Landings and takeoffs of helicopters will generate noise and some degree of vibration. 
However, there are no residential properties in the near vicinity. A conditional use permit may 
be revocable if the proposed use is detrimental to the public health, safety or welfare. 
 

6. The use will not significantly cause erosion, ground or surface water contamination or 
significant adverse alteration of fish habitat on any parcel adjacent to state-identified 
anadromous streams. 

 
According to the 2015 GIS data provided by Alaska Department of Fish and Game, Wilson’s 
property is not within or nearby any state-identified anadromous streams. Property owner 
Wilson indicated that FAA has reviewed the site and has granted a private heliport designation 
(AA35). “To safeguard surface water we will have containment for all fueling systems and will 
provide restroom and trash collection services to handle all human waste”.  
 

7. The use will comply with all required conditions and specifications if located where proposed 
and developed, and operated according to the plan as submitted and approved.  
 
Property owner Wilson intends to use the heliport for commercial purposes, and the proposed 

helipads comply with the setback requirements, per HBC 18.80.030(B). Conditional use 

permits may be granted with restrictions on operating period, operating hours, etc. This permit 

could be immediately suspended or revoked should any of the conditions not be adhered to. 

The applicant must agree and adhere to the conditions of this permit prior to its approval. Also, 

the Planning Commission may oversee and decide how any issues or concerns of local 

residents will be resolved.  

 



8. Comments received from property owners impacted by the proposed development have been 
considered and given their due weight.  
 
As of today, the Borough has not received any written citizen comments. As stated above, no 
surrounding property owners within 200 feet have responded. 

 

Therefore, I recommend the Planning Commission approve Wilson’s conditional use proposal with 

conditions of (1) conform to the statement set forth in the permit application; and (2) fuel storage will 

be done in accordance with DEC standards with a fuel spill containment project in place before 

operation begin. Thank you very much for considering this recommendation. 

 
Sincerely,  

 

 

 

David Sosa 

Borough Manager 

           D.B. Sosa























  
 

October 5, 2015 

 

«PRIMARYOWNER» 

«ADDRESS» 

«CITY», «STATE» «ZIPCODE» 

 

Re: Heliport Conditional Use Permit Public Hearing  

        36 Mile Haines Highway; 3-HHY-36-3426; General Use Zone 

        

Dear Land Owner, 

 

Haines Borough records show that you own property within 200 feet of the above-listed 

property. The property owner, Michael Wilson, has requested for the Planning 

Commission to approve a conditional use permit to allow the installation of a helipad at 

36 Mile Haines Highway. 

 

The Haines Borough Planning Commission will hold a public hearing on the matter at the 

next regular Planning Commission meeting. The meeting will be held at 6:30 p.m. at the 

Haines Borough Assembly Chambers on Thursday, October 15, 2015. As an owner of 

property within 200 feet of the above-listed property you are being notified that you are 

invited to attend and comment at the meeting.  If you have any questions on the matter 

please contact the Borough. 

 

Sincerely, 

 

 

 

Tracy Cui 

Planning and Zoning Technician III 

Phone: (907)766-2231 Ext 23 

Fax: (907) 766-2716 

xcui@haines.ak.us 

 

 

 

 
HAINES BOROUGH, ALASKA 
P.O. BOX 1209 

HAINES, AK  99827 
(907) 766-2231 FAX (907) 766-2716 

 

mailto:xcui@haines.ak.us


 

 

List of Property Owners Notified 

 

 

State of Alaska Land 

 

State of Alaska 

Dept of Natural Resources 

Mining Land & Water 

Realty Services Section 

550 W 7
th

 Avenue Suite 1050A 

Anchorage Alaska 99501 

 

As well as to: 

State of Alaska 

Dept of Natural Resources 

Mining Land & Water 

South East Regional Office 

PO Box 111020 

Juneau Alaska 99811-1020 

 

Owner Address 

 

Michael Wilson 

8484 Duran Ct 

Juneau, AK 99801 



Chapter 18.50 CONDITIOANL USE 

HBC 18.50.040 Decision. 

The commission shall hold a public hearing on the conditional use permit application. The 
commission may adopt the manager’s recommendation on each requirement unless it finds, by a 
preponderance of the evidence, that the manager’s recommendation was in error and states its 
reasoning for such finding with particularity. In addition, for good cause, the commission may 
alter the conditions on approval or requirements for guarantees recommended by the manager. 

A. Before a conditional use permit is approved, the commission must find that each of the 
following requirements is met: 

1. The use is so located on the site as to avoid undue noise and other nuisances and dangers; 

2. The development of the use is such that the value of the adjoining property will not be 
significantly impaired; 

3. The size and scale of the use is such that existing public services and facilities are adequate to 
serve the proposed use; 

4. The specific development scheme of the use is consistent and in harmony with the 
comprehensive plan and surrounding land uses; 

5. The granting of the conditional use will not be harmful to the public safety, health or welfare; 

6. The use will not significantly cause erosion, ground or surface water contamination or 
significant adverse alteration of fish habitat on any parcel adjacent to state-identified anadromous 
streams; 

7. The use will comply with all required conditions and specifications if located where proposed 
and developed, and operated according to the plan as submitted and approved; 

8. Comments received from property owners impacted by the proposed development have been 
considered and given their due weight. 

If the commission finds that the development implements all relevant requirements of this title, it 
shall issue a conditional use permit and the conditions and requirements shall be part of the 
approved permit. If the development does not implement all relevant requirements, or the 
commission otherwise determines the development is not in compliance with this title, the 
commission shall deny the permit and note with particularity its reasons for the decision. 

B. The commission may alter the manager’s proposed permit conditions, impose its own, or both. 
Conditions may include one or more of the following: 



1. Development Schedule. The conditions may place a reasonable time limit on construction 
activity associated with the development, or any portion thereof, to minimize construction-
related disruption to traffic and neighbors, to ensure that lots are not sold prior to substantial 
completion of required public improvements, or to implement other requirements. 

2. Use. The conditions may restrict the use of the development to specific uses indicated in the 
approval. 

3. Owner’s Association. The conditions may require that if a developer, homeowner or merchant 
association is necessary or desirable to hold or maintain common property, that it be created 
prior to occupancy. 

4. Dedications. The conditions may require conveyances of title, licenses, easements or other 
property interests to the public, to public utilities, or to the homeowners association. The 
conditions may require construction of public utilities or improvements to public standards and 
then dedication of public facilities to serve the development and the public. 

5. Construction Guarantees. The conditions may require the posting of a bond or other surety or 
collateral (which may provide for partial releases) to ensure satisfactory completion of all 
improvements required by the commission. 

6. Commitment Letter. The conditions may require a letter from a utility company or public 
agency legally committing it to serve the development if such service is required by the 
commission. 

7. Covenants. The conditions may require the recording of covenants or other instruments 
satisfactory to the borough as necessary to ensure permit compliance by future owners or 
occupants. 

8. Design. The conditions may require the adoption of design standards specific to the use and 
site. 

 



 

HAINES BOROUGH 

Planning & Zoning 

P.O. Box 1209 

Haines, AK 99827-1209 

907-766-2231 Ext. 23 

907-766-2716 (fax) 

 

 

 

October 8, 2015 

To: Haines Borough Planning Commission  

From:  Brad Ryan, Public Facilities Director 

  Tracy Cui, Planning and Zoning Technician III 

 

Re:   Hill Top Subdivision Preliminary Long Plat   

  C-USS-A2-2716; Multiple Residential Zone 

 

Highland Estates, Inc submitted an updated long plat subdivision application through its agent Dave Smith. Haines 

Borough Code (HBC) 18.70.040 allows “Subdivision, Residential” in the multiple residential zone. HBC 18.100.050 

requires a preliminary plat to be submitted to the Planning Commission for review and approval before any construction 

begins, and the application for approval of the preliminary plat shall be placed on the agenda for the next planning 

commission meeting. Staff reviewed the preliminary plat and made recommendations as following: 

 

 Staff found the ownership of one portion of the proposed subdivision is unclear. It appears that one portion of 

land was sold by a party claiming to have good title but was actually owned by someone else, which causes 

confusion as to the true owner of the property. For this reason, titles are also called a “cloudy title”, meaning that 

it is difficult to “see” who the proper owner is. It is very important that title defects be discovered and properly 

addressed well before the property is subdivided. Investigating the background of property titles involves 

predicting any potential conflicts that might arise in the future. The developer is currently working on resolving 

this issue. 

 Easements must be obtained from the Port Chilkoot Company for the half-street portions of Allie Road and 

Tower Road not owned by the developer. Copies of the easements must be sent to the Borough as soon as they 

are executed and before the preliminary plat will be signed. The Port Chilkoot Company should sign “ownership 

certification and dedication” as affected owner on the plat.  

 Water and Sewer main extensions shall be approved by DEC and authorized by the Assembly. The lines must be 

inspected by an impartial third-party engineer qualified to make such inspections. The inspection costs are borne 

by the developer. Also, the inspector shall be on site continuously while the work is being done. 

 The plat shall show “statement of property taxes”.  

 The plat shall indicate the zoning of the proposed subdivision.  

 Staff recommend the commission grant a variance to allow one portion of Bartlett Blvd to be constructed at 12% 

grade only if Rivers Street to be developed into Borough standards so as to provide access to the end of the 

Bartlett Blvd for the purposes of emergency response and snow plowing.  

 Drainage system plans shall be provided with respect to the storm water being discharged into the adjoining 

property owned by the Port Chilkoot Company.  

 Low water pressure issue in the subdivision for block 2, lots 2, 4, 5, 6, 7, 19, 20, 21, 31, 32, 33, 34, 35 and 36 

shall be addressed and approved by DEC.  

 Due to the height of lots 1 and 3, block 2, no public water service will be available to these lots. Developer must 

either dig a well or install a pump and water line from an available main at a lower elevation. If installing 

pump/line, such pump and line must be installed before property owner(s) will be allowed to connect to the 

8C



public water system. Maintenance of pump and water line will remain the responsibility of the lot owners served 

by this line.  

 Maintenance of private access to lots 1-4, block 2 is the responsibility of the owners of these lots. 

 The 14% private access to lots 1, 3, and 4, block 2. This grade may make it difficult for fire trucks access due to 

the weather condition. Staff recommend the commission reserve lot 1 or 3, block 2 as a park/open space for a 

period of five years, after which time either the Borough shall either acquire the property or release the 

reservation.  

 Per HBC 12.08.110(D)(1), the turnaround shall be constructed to a four percent grade or less. The proposed 

Hilltop Way does not meet this requirement.  

 No lots in the subdivision may be re-subdivided except lot 3, block 2, which may only be further subdivided into 

two lots. Subdivider of lot 3 accepts the responsibility of providing utilities and legal and physical access to both 

lots formed by the subdivision. 

 All roads shown in the preliminary plat shall be constructed to Road Construction Standard Category II; Hill Side 

Loop and Hilltop Way shall be constructed to Category I. (HBC 12. 08.080) Staff will conduct an inspection 

prior to grading-C or D1 application of the sub-base on Category I and II roads. 

 Installation of fire hydrants will be at cost of the developer.  

 

Additionally, please see the recommendations for consultations necessary for permitting. These are only recommendations 

the developer should do a thorough review of all necessary state, federal, and Borough permits necessary for the 

subdivision.  

 

 U.S. Army Corps of Engineers (Corps) 

Any person, firm, or agency (including Federal, State and Local government agencies) planning to work in 

navigable waters of the United States, and/or discharge (dump, place, deposit) dredged or fill material in waters 

of the United States, including wetlands, must first obtain a permit from the Corps. The Corps is responsible for 

determining whether an area is a jurisdictional water of the U.S. In addition to evaluating permit applications, the 

Corps also investigates and resolves violations for situations where a permit was not obtained. The Regulatory 

Division’s web site is: www.poa.usace.army.mil/reg 

 

 State of Alaska, Dept. of Fish & Game 

The Division of Habitat is a unit of the Alaska Department of Fish and Game. Effective July 1, 2008, fish habitat 

permitting, Forest Resource and Practices Act Review, and other project review functions were transferred from 

the Department of Natural Resources to the Department of Fish and Game. 

 

 U.S. Environmental Protection Agency  

The local EPA office provides assistance to the Corps of Engineers in review of projects that are proposed in 

Waters of the United States. EPA assists the Corps in Clean Water Act enforcement by pursuing cases that 

involve repeat and recalcitrant violators. Waste water violations and other programs are pursued out of the 

Anchorage and Seattle offices but the local office can assist in making those contacts.  

 

The EPA also manages storm water permits.  Additional information is at: U.S. Environmental Protection 

Agency, Region 10, Alaska Operations Office, 222 West Seventh Avenue, Anchorage, AK 99513-7588 or 

(907)271-5083. http://www.epa.gov/region10/   

 

 State of Alaska, Department of Environmental Conservation  

The Alaska Department of Environmental Conservation (ADEC) provides and enforces standards for water 

quality and waste disposal. For information contact the local ADEC http://dec.alaska.gov/  

 

 

 

 

http://www.poa.usace.army.mil/reg
http://www.epa.gov/region10/
http://dec.alaska.gov/












































  
 
October 5, 2015 
 
«PRIMARYOWNER» 
«ADDRESS» 
«CITY», «STATE», «COUNTRY» «ZIPCODE» 
 
Re: Hill Top Subdivision Preliminary Plat Public Hearing  
        Portion of USS 2716; C-USS-A2-2716 
 Multiple Residential Zone 
 
Dear Land Owner, 
 
Haines Borough records show that you own property within 200 feet of the above-listed 
property. Highland Estates, Inc. submitted an updated preliminary long plat subdivision 
through its agent Dave Smith. The commission will process the preliminary plat pursuant to 
the standards set forth for special conditions permits and the standards set forth in HBC 
18.100. 
 
The Haines Borough Planning Commission will hold a public hearing on the matter at the 
next regular Planning Commission meeting. The meeting will be held at 6:30 p.m. at the 
Haines Borough Assembly Chambers on Thursday October 15, 2015. As an owner of 
property within 200 feet of the above-listed property you are being notified that you are 
invited to attend and comment at the meeting. If you have any questions on the matter 
please contact the Borough. 
 
Sincerely, 
 
 
 
Tracy Cui 
Planning and Zoning Technician III 
Phone: (907)766-2231 Ext 23 
Fax: (907) 766-2716 
xcui@haines.ak.us 
 
 

 
HAINES BOROUGH, ALASKA 
P.O. BOX 1209 

HAINES, AK  99827 
(907) 766-2231 FAX (907) 766-2716 

 

mailto:xcui@haines.ak.us


PRIMARYOWNER ADDRESS CITY STATE COUNTRY ZIPCODE
HAYNES L. TORMEY II 3718 EL CAMINO JUNEAU AK US 99801
FRANK BROWN 8217 CEDAR DRIVE JUNEAU AK US 99801
CONNIE WARD BOX 1075 HAINES AK US 99827
ADAM C. MCMAHAN BOX 1335 HAINES AK US 99827
FREDRICK D. FOLLETTI BOX 145 HAINES AK US 99827
MARNIE HARTMAN BOX 1567 HAINES AK US 99827
CHURCH OF THE NAZARENE BOX 190485 ANCHORAGE AK US 99519
SHANE HORTON BOX 250 HAINES AK US 99827
C/O LEE HEINMILLER BOX 271 HAINES AK US 99827
&REW A. DEGEN BOX 950 HAINES AK US 99827
C/O ROGER SCHNABEL HC 60, BOX 4800 HAINES AK US 99827
OMAR CORDES HERENGRACHT 105-107 AMSTERDAM 1015 BE N. HOLLAND THE NETHERLANDS



HBC 18.100.050 Long plat procedures – Preliminary plat. 

A. Planning Commission Review. Before submitting a final plat for approval for recording under AS 40.15, as 

amended from time to time, and HBC 18.100.112, and unless following the procedures of HBC 18.100.030 and 

18.100.035, the subdivider shall submit a preliminary plat prepared by a registered land surveyor to the commission 

at 20 percent to 35 percent completion in order that general agreement may be reached on layout and arrangement of 

streets and lots and other public utilities before a final plat is prepared. A 100 percent complete preliminary plat 

must be submitted to the planning commission for review and approval before any construction begins. Any 

subsequent changes to the approved preliminary plat must be preapproved in writing by the borough manager. 

Substantial changes, such as changes to the alignment and grade of roads, changes to water and sewer lines, changes 

to lot size, or any changes that will cause future expense to the borough, must be approved by the planning 

commission. 

B. Planning Commission Action. The commission shall process preliminary plats pursuant to the standards set forth 

for special conditions permits and the standards set forth in this chapter. 

C. Engineering Standards. The preliminary plat shall be drawn with waterproof nonfading black ink or legibly 

drawn with pencil on tracing cloth, or tracing paper of good quality, measuring 24 inches by 36 inches, at a scale of 

either 40, 50, 60 or 100 feet to an inch, scaled appropriately for the size of the property being platted, and shall show 

accurately on its face: 

1. The date, scale and north point. 

2. The proposed subdivision name, which shall not be so similar to the name of any plat previously recorded in the 

area as to cause confusion. 

3. The name and address of the owner, the subdivider, and the surveyor preparing the plat. 

4. The exact length and bearing of the exterior boundaries of the subdivision. 

5. Location and names of adjacent subdivisions and the owners of adjoining parcels of unsubdivided land. 

6. Zoning on and adjacent to the subdivision. 

7. Location, widths and names of all existing and platted streets, alleys, or other public ways and easements, 

driveways, and utility rights-of-way, tideland leases, parks, cemeteries, watercourses, drainage ditches, permanent 

buildings, bridges, and other pertinent data. 

8. The water elevations of adjoining lakes or streams at the date of the survey and the approximate high and low 

water elevations of adjoining lakes, streams and tidal areas. 

9. If the subdivision borders a lake or stream, the distances and bearing on a meander line established not less than 

20 feet back from the mean high higher water mark of the lake or stream. 

10. The location of significant natural features such as, but not limited to anadromous fish streams, existing material 

sites, wetlands, and U.S. Fish and Wildlife cataloged eagle nesting trees. 

11. Layout, width and grades of all new streets, driveways, and rights-of-way, such as alleys, highways, easements 

for sewers, water mains and other public utilities. 

12. Dimensions and areas of lots. 

13. Proposed building lines. 

14. Radii of all curves and length of tangents. 

15. Contours at two-foot vertical intervals or at more frequent intervals if required by the commission for land of 

unusual terrain characteristics. All pertinent elevations should be shown. 

16. The location of any hazard areas set forth in HBC 18.60.010. 

17. Plan sheets of the same scale showing engineering design, both plan and profile, and stamped by a registered 

professional engineer, of any water, sewer, streets, drainage systems, snow storage sites or other public utility to be 

considered as part of the development. 

18. The area for which such data is to be shown shall extend beyond the boundaries of the actual property being 

platted a distance sufficient to adequately relate the plat to its surroundings. 

19. A minimum of six sets of all plan sheets shall be provided to the commission. 

D. Approval of Preliminary Plat. The completed application for approval of the preliminary plat shall be submitted 

to the manager and placed on the agenda for the next planning commission meeting. Approval of properly prepared 

preliminary plats shall occur no later than 30 days after submission to the commission. If the commission does not 

approve of the plat within 30 days of filing, they shall return the plat to the applicant for modification or correction. 

Once properly resubmitted with all required information, the commission shall again have 30 days for review and 

decision. An applicant for plat approval may consent to an extension of the period for action by the commission. 

Any reason for disapproval shall be so stated upon the records of the commission and provided to the applicant. 

E. Forwarding of Approved Preliminary Plat. Upon commission approval of a properly submitted preliminary plat, 

the applicant shall follow the final plat procedures below. 

http://www.legis.state.ak.us/basis/statutes.asp#40.15
http://www.codepublishing.com/AK/HainesBorough/html/HainesBorough18/HainesBorough18100.html#18.100.112
http://www.codepublishing.com/AK/HainesBorough/html/HainesBorough18/HainesBorough18100.html#18.100.030
http://www.codepublishing.com/AK/HainesBorough/html/HainesBorough18/HainesBorough18100.html#18.100.035
http://www.codepublishing.com/AK/HainesBorough/html/HainesBorough18/HainesBorough1860.html#18.60.010


F. Action Following Approval of Preliminary Plat. Upon approval of the preliminary plat, the applicant may 

undertake certain activities prior to approval of the final plat. These activities are: 

1. Completing surveying and monumentation; 

2. Complying with plat conditions required by the commission as conditions of approval, including but not limited 

to physical improvements to the property such as land clearing, installation of drainage and identification of rights-

of-way and easements. 

3. Preparing a reproducible mylar plat as approved by the commission. 

G. Nullification of Preliminary Plat Approval. Preliminary plat approval shall become nullified if the applicant has 

not begun surveying and monumenting the lot lines for subdividing the parcel within 24 months of the approval of 

the preliminary plat. (Ord. 12-04-284 § 4; Ord. 08-06-184) 

 

HBC 18.100.070 General requirements and design standards. 

The proposed subdivision shall conform to: 

A. The provisions of AS 40.15, and AS 29.40, as amended from time to time and all other relevant laws and 

regulations. 

B. All applicable ordinances of the borough. 

C. The comprehensive plan and the coastal management plan of the borough. 

D. The regulations of the State Department of Transportation and Public Facilities relating to safety of access and 

the preservation of the public interest and investment in streets and highways if the subdivision of any lot contained 

therein abuts on a state highway. 

E. The requirement that approvable building sites exist on each proposed lot, as defined within this title, except for 

lots specifically set aside and dedicated (1) as hazardous slope setbacks, (2) as special drainage easements, and/or (3) 

as open space and greenbelts. Where regulated, proposed new land development activities in new subdivisions 

which lie within the borough must conform to special hazardous area management requirements (See HBC 

18.60.010(T)), and must ensure that the water quality of streams and major drainages is maintained and that they are 

not obstructed without adequate mitigation. 

F. Block and Lot Designation. Within any new multi-phased subdivision, block designations shall not be repeated 

from phase to phase, but shall continue sequentially from one phase to the next (i.e., if Block C is the last block in 

Phase I, the first block in Phase II would be Block D). Preferably, blocks shall be designated by a letter of the 

alphabet beginning with A and lots by numbers, beginning with one. 

G. Subdivision Name. A new subdivision name shall not be so similar to the name of any existing subdivision so as 

to cause confusion. 

H. Access and Buffers. All lots must be guaranteed a public access easement of at least but not limited to five feet in 

width. It is recommended that subdividers establish public access easements along property lines that follow natural 

corridors. All streams and watercourses used to provide DEC-approved domestic water shall be protected by a 25-

foot buffer on each side, measured from the stream bank. 

 

HBC 18.100.075 Streets. 

The design and construction of streets, roads, and sidewalks in subdivisions shall be governed by the provisions of 

HBC 12.08.030 through 12.08.190. (Ord. 08-03-180) 

 

HBC 18.100.080 Intersections. 

A. Right Angle. Streets shall intersect as nearly as possible at right angles and not more than two streets shall 

intersect at one point unless approval is granted by the commission. 

B. Rounded. Property lines at street intersections shall be rounded with a radius of at least 15 feet. 

C. Jogs. Street jogs with center line offsets of less than 125 feet shall be avoided. Where streets intersect major 

streets, their alignment shall be continuous. 

 

HBC 18.100.085 Lots. 

A. In General. The size, shape and orientation of lots shall be appropriate for the location and physical attributes of 

the subdivision and for the type of development contemplated. 

B. Lot Dimensions/Size. 

1. Lots should be designed with a suitable proportion between width and depth. Normal lot width should not be less 

than 65 feet. Normal lot depth should not exceed two and one-half times the width, nor be less than 100 feet. Unless 

otherwise provided, lots shall in no instance be less than 10,000 square feet in total area. 

http://www.legis.state.ak.us/basis/statutes.asp#40.15
http://www.legis.state.ak.us/basis/statutes.asp#29.40
http://www.codepublishing.com/AK/HainesBorough/html/HainesBorough18/HainesBorough1860.html#18.60.010
http://www.codepublishing.com/AK/HainesBorough/html/HainesBorough12/HainesBorough1208.html#12.08.030
http://www.codepublishing.com/AK/HainesBorough/html/HainesBorough12/HainesBorough1208.html#12.08.190


2. Depth and width of properties reserved or laid out for commercial and industrial purposes shall be adequate to 

provide for the off-street service and parking facilities required by the type of use and development contemplated. 

3. Residential lots abutting on major streets and highways shall be platted with sufficient depth to permit adequate 

separation between the buildings and such traffic ways. 

C. Corner Lots. Corner lots should be designed to permit a setback on all lot lines abutting streets as required by the 

zoning ordinance. 

D. Access to Public Streets. Every lot shall front or abut on a dedicated public right-of-way with the exception of 

subdivisions or lots that are in roadless areas of the borough and accessed solely from a navigable water body, in 

which case all lots shall be accessible from the navigable water body or via a dedicated access easement from the 

water body. Lots with an access only to private drives shall not be permitted unless a permanent easement has been 

granted and properly recorded. No lots shall access an alley as the means of access to public streets. 

E. Lots at Right Angles. Lots at right angles to each other should be avoided wherever possible, especially in 

residential areas. 

F. Lot Lines. Side lot lines shall be substantially at right angles or radial to street lines. 

G. Large Lots. Where lots are created of a size larger than normal for the area, the commission shall require that the 

plat be so designated as to allow for the possible future re-subdivision of such lots into sizes normal for the area. 

H. Small Lots. Where lots are created that are less than 20,000 square feet in area, the commission shall require that 

the plat be so designated as to not allow for re-subdivision of such lots. 

I. Municipal Boundaries. Lots shall follow municipal boundary lines wherever practicable, rather than cross them. 

J. Multiple Frontages. Lots abutting a street on more than one side shall be avoided except where necessary to 

provide separation of residential development from traffic or to overcome specific disadvantages of topography and 

orientation. (Ord. 10-11-247 § 4) 

 

HBC 18.100.092 Requirements prior to final plat approval. 

A. Utilities. 

1. Water and Sewer. The subdivider, at the subdivider’s own expense and prior to final plat approval, in accordance 

with the approved preliminary plat, shall construct, per borough specifications, all water and sewer utilities to 

service each lot individually within the subdivision to be created. The subdivider may elect to provide performance 

and payment bonding as allowed in HBC 18.100.125 in order to have authorization to proceed to a final plat 

procedure. 

2. When, in the opinion of borough staff, no public sanitary sewer and/or water service is available within 200 feet 

of any exterior property line of a new subdivision in which all lots are one acre or larger in area, the developer may 

request an exemption from the requirements to connect to public utilities. All regulations of the State Department of 

Environmental Conservation pertaining to water extraction and wastewater disposal, as well as the requirements of 

HBC 13.04.080(G) pertaining to on-site wastewater disposal, shall apply. If exempted from the requirement to 

connect to public utilities, a plat note must be placed on the plat stating that public water and/or sewer are not 

available to the subdivision and that all future property owners in the subdivision must provide written Department 

of Environmental Conservation (DEC) approval of their on-site wastewater system design prior to a land use permit 

being issued. Upon installation and before closure, the wastewater disposal system must be inspected and approved 

by a DEC-approved inspector. 

When public sanitary sewer and/or water service becomes available, property owners will be required to connect to 

the public utility within six months. 

B. Streets. The subdivider shall, prior to final plat approval, at the subdivider’s own expense and in accordance with 

the approved preliminary plat and borough specifications, along all dedicated streets, including existing half-streets, 

construct all required roads to meet or exceed the road standards in HBC 12.08.030 through 12.08.190. 

C. Monuments. All exterior corners and street intersections of the subdivision shall be marked by permanent 

monuments set in the ground. All individual lots shall have their perimeter corners staked. If the plat corner or a lot 

corner is identical with a plat corner or lot corner of a U.S. Survey, a U.S. Mineral Survey, or an Alaska Tidelands 

Survey, the primary monument of such survey shall be shown on the plat, or reestablished and shown if not found. 

(Ord. 13-12-359 § 4; Ord. 09-01-197) 

 

HBC 18.100.095 Reservation of public sites and open spaces. 

In order that adequate open spaces and sites for public uses may be properly located and preserved as the community 

develops, and in order that the cost of providing the public facilities necessary to serve the additional families 

brought into the community by subdivision development may be most equitably apportioned, the following 

provisions are established: 

http://www.codepublishing.com/AK/HainesBorough/html/HainesBorough18/HainesBorough18100.html#18.100.125
http://www.codepublishing.com/AK/HainesBorough/html/HainesBorough13/HainesBorough1304.html#13.04.080
http://www.codepublishing.com/AK/HainesBorough/html/HainesBorough12/HainesBorough1208.html#12.08.030
http://www.codepublishing.com/AK/HainesBorough/html/HainesBorough12/HainesBorough1208.html#12.08.190


A. Design Consideration. In the design of the plat, consideration shall be given to the adequate provision of and 

correlation with such public sites or open spaces. 

B. Reservation May Be Required. Where it is determined by the commission that a portion of the plat is required for 

such public sites or open spaces, the subdivider shall be required to reserve such area for a period not to exceed five 

years, after which the borough shall either acquire the property or release the reservation. 

 

HBC 12.08.030 Plan of road construction and development. 

The streets and alleys of the borough shall be constructed, graded and improved when existing rights-of-way permit 

it and in accordance with the provisions of this chapter as administered by the manager. It shall be unlawful to 

destroy, construct, or repair any street, alley, culvert, bridge, sidewalk, ditch, sewer, or drain within the corporate 

limits of the borough on property within its jurisdiction without first obtaining permission from the manager. (Ord. 

08-03-180) 

 

HBC 12.08.040 Standards applicable. 

All public access roads in the Haines Borough must be constructed in accordance with an approved plat and meet or 

exceed the requirements set forth in this section or in accordance with a variance granted by the planning 

commission due to extenuating circumstances. (Ord. 08-03-180) 

 

HBC 12.08.050 Local road construction standards. 

The borough adopts the standards for construction of roads contained in this chapter. Should there be a conflict 

between the road construction standards contained herein and those contained in the subdivision ordinance (Chapter 

18.100 HBC) or other chapters of the borough code, these standards shall control. (Ord. 08-03-180) 

 

HBC 12.08.060 Other requirements not eliminated. 

This chapter only establishes design and construction standards and does not eliminate any other requirements that 

may be established by federal or state statutes, borough ordinances or other regulations adopted pursuant to these 

laws. Permits may be required in instances involving construction in flood hazard zones, wetlands and fish habitat. 

Grading, excavation and fill permits, storm water/water separation waivers and coastal management consistency 

reviews may be required. The land owner is responsible for knowing the necessity of a permit and acquiring it. (Ord. 

08-03-180; Ord. 04-06-064) 

 

HBC 12.08.070 Road construction standards – Introduction. 

A. Enforcement. The borough shall inspect road construction to ensure adherence to an approved plat and borough 

standards. Inspection may include test holes; engineering analysis of road geometry, drainage, and general adequacy 

for anticipated traffic. Construction not adhering to an approved design or construction standards shall be brought 

into compliance by the developer. 

B. Design Speeds. All categories of roads named in this chapter have a statutory speed designation of 25 miles per 

hour for residential areas, except that collector roads may enjoy 35 miles per hour. Actual speed design will be 

determined by factors of terrain and construction costs. The posted speed may be lower than the design speed, and 

shall be set by the municipality with due consideration to neighborhood safety; presence of schools, houses, parks 

and crosswalks; the presence of driveways, parked vehicles and multiple turn locations and the effectiveness of 

enforcement. (Ord. 08-03-180) 

 

HBC 12.08.080 Road construction standards – Construction categories. 

A. Internal Subdivision Roads. The standard to which a road is constructed shall be based on the categories set forth 

below. The category shall also be determined by lots indirectly served where the road is a collector or subcollector 

and provides necessary access to lots not otherwise served by a collector or sub-collector. 

Category I: A cul-de-sac road or other minor road 

that serves less than 20 lots. 

Category II: A road that serves between 20 and 39 

lots. 

Category III:  A road that serves 40 or more lots. 

B. Category Determination. The borough will determine the category of road based on the standards set forth in this 

chapter. If the developer disagrees with the category the applicant may request a review by the manager. 

http://www.codepublishing.com/AK/HainesBorough/html/HainesBorough18/HainesBorough18100.html#18.100


C. Existing Collector Roads. Existing collector roads shall be reconstructed to a Category III in a new subdivision, 

where the average daily traffic (ADT) on the existing collector road can be projected to exceed 300 after subdivision. 

Alaska Department of Transportation and Public Facilities Division of Planning, Mapping Section current ADT 

readings shall be referenced. 

D. Half-Streets. Where a previous dedicated half-street exists in a subdivision adjacent to a new subdivision, the 

second half of the street within the proposed subdivision shall be dedicated to the borough for public use by the 

subdivider. (Ord. 08-03-180) 

 

HBC 12.08.090 Road construction standards – Widths and topping. 

Category 

Road 

Width 

D1 or 

Grading-C 

Topping 

Right-of-

Way 

Width 

Total 

Width 

I 24 ft. 4 in. 60 ft. 24 ft. 

II 28 ft. 4 in. 60 ft. 28 ft. 

III 30 ft. 6 in. 60 ft. 30 ft. 

These widths are the minimum. The developer may build wider roads to standards. Additional width may be 

required for utility easements and drainage. Three-foot-wide bicycle paths are included in Category II and III road 

widths. (Ord. 08-03-180) 

 

HBC 12.08.100 Road construction standards – Structures and bridges. 

Bridges, bottomless culverts, walls and other structures on roads certified for borough maintenance shall be prepared 

and stamped by a licensed professional civil engineer, and shall be submitted to the borough prior to acceptance of 

the road for maintenance. (Ord. 08-03-180) 

 

HBC 12.08.110 Road construction standards – Vertical and horizontal alignment. 

A. Vertical Alignment. Unless granted a variance by the planning commission, roads shall be constructed in a 

manner such that grades shall not exceed 10 percent and crossroads within 20 feet of a through-road intersection 

shall not exceed four percent grade. 

B. Horizontal Alignment. Roads shall be constructed along the centerline of the right-of-way and shall have curves 

meeting the minimum radius requirements of not less than 300 feet for rights-of-way, 100 feet in width or more, and 

not less than 200 feet on all other roads. 

C. Clear Zone. The roadside shall be clear of hazardous objects or conditions for a distance consistent with speed, 

traffic volume, and geometric conditions of the site. Roads shall be constructed with a minimum clear zone of six 

and one-half feet. Where hazardous physical features exist which cannot be located outside of the clear zone, 

alternative treatments such as guardrails may be required. 

D. Culs-de-Sac (Turnarounds).  

1. Roads designed to have one end closed permanently shall be no longer than 500 feet from the center of the 

intersection to the radius point of the cul-de-sac, and shall terminate with a turnaround having at least a 100-foot-

diameter right-of-way and a roadway at least 75 feet in diameter. The turnaround shall be constructed to a four 

percent grade or less. 

2. Temporary roads longer than 500 feet may be constructed with one end closed with a conditional use permit 

approved by the planning commission. A conditional use permit may be granted with a minimum of the following 

criteria: 

a. The road shall terminate with a turnaround having at least a 100-foot-diameter right-of-way and a roadway at least 

75 feet in diameter. The turnaround shall be constructed to a four percent grade or less.  

b. The developer shall post a performance bond. 

c. The planning commission shall set an expiration date for the conditional use permit. 

E. Intersections. A minimum unobstructed sight distance of 150 feet shall be provided unless a variance is granted 

due to topography, traffic flow or other physical characteristics. Appropriate warning signs may be required if an 

exception to the sight distance is granted. Road intersections shall be constructed with a minimum return radius of 

20 feet. (Ord. 10-07-235 § 4; Ord. 08-03-180) 

 

HBC 12.08.120 Road construction standards – Drainage and culvert material. 



A. Roads shall be constructed to prevent ponding of runoff waters in roadside ditches. Drainage ditches shall be 

constructed such that runoff waters will be conveyed to natural drainage courses, ditches or waterways, or other 

manmade drainage courses. Minimum depth of ditches shall be two feet unless special circumstances are approved 

by the borough. There shall be a maximum of one and one-half to one slope from the shoulder to the bottom of the 

ditch. There shall be a maximum of one to one back slope except in cases where bedrock is present. 

B. Culvert outlets shall be constructed to prevent excessive siltation of riparian habitats, channel erosion or drainage 

to public or private property. The borough may require engineering analysis and design for locations susceptible to 

flooding, excessive siltation, or other natural conditions potentially damaging to the right-of-way, adjacent property, 

or water courses and water bodies. Roadway cross-culverts and driveway culverts shall be a minimum diameter of 

18 inches, unless special circumstances are approved by the borough. The length of the culvert shall be four feet 

longer than the road width when placed perpendicular to the roadway, and in any case, shall protrude a minimum of 

two feet beyond outer total road edge. Culverts, coupling bands and special sections shall be corrugated steel pipe, at 

a minimum of 16 gauge. Plastic culverts shall meet AASHTO Standard Section 706-2.07, corrugated polyethylene 

pipe, AASHTO M 294, Type S. (Ord. 08-03-180) 

 

HBC 12.08.130 Road construction standards – Typical section materials. 

Sub-base shall contain no muck, frozen materials, roots, sod or other deleterious matter. The Haines Borough will 

conduct an inspection prior to grading-C or D1 application of the sub-base on Category I and II roads. The Category 

III road’s sub-base will adhere to specifications called out in the project specific design described in HMC 

12.08.140(B). (Ord. 08-03-180) 

 

HBC 12.08.140 Road construction standards – General. 

A. Typical Section. Gravel roads shall be constructed in accordance with the gravel road typical section drawing and 

associated Table A [see figure 1]. Additional requirements are: 

1. Roads must be contiguous with the existing road system maintained by the borough and the state. All roads must 

be on a dedicated right-of-way and must be built along the right-of-way centerline. A minimum right-of-way width 

shall be 60 feet, enabling utilities to be installed outside the edge of roadside ditches. 

2. All organic material shall be stripped and removed to a minimum depth of four feet below the finished grade. If 

geotextile is used over organics, then the depth of sub-base must be three feet minimum or greater as required for 

stable embankment. 

3. The roadway embankment shall be placed in maximum one-foot lifts and compacted to not less than 90 percent of 

maximum density, as specified by AASHTO for material application. Density shall be determined by AASHTO T 

180, method D. 

4. Onsite usable excavation material may be used as sub-base with approval from the public works superintendent. 

 



B. Project-Specific Design. Category III roads require a project-specific design prepared and sealed by a licensed 

professional civil engineer in accordance with the Category III gravel road typical section drawing and associated 

Table A. The design shall be approved by the borough as provided for in HMC Title 18. Once the project is 

complete, as-built plans, prepared and sealed by a licensed professional civil engineer, shall be submitted to the 

borough. The as-built shall illustrate horizontal alignment, finish grade profile, typical section of the roadbed, and 

material specifications. The as-built plans are required prior to municipal road maintenance. (Ord. 08-03-180) 

 

HBC 12.08.150 Sidewalks, curbs, gutters, and accessibility. 

A. The manager shall require that an area 10 feet wide adjoining the street boundary be reserved on each side of the 

street, with the curb line being on the opposite side of such 10-foot reserved area. All proposed sidewalks in the 

business area must receive written approval from the manager. All curb lines will be rounded at the corners on a 

radius of 10 feet at entrances to alleys and on a radius of 17.5 feet on cross streets. Sidewalk widths may be appealed 

to the manager. 

B. It shall be unlawful to construct any sidewalk less than six feet in width on Main Street, Front Street, Second 

Avenue, Third Avenue, Fourth Avenue, Fifth Avenue, Sixth Avenue, Dalton Street, Union Street, or View Street 

within the corporate limits of the borough, except at the direction of the manager. 

C. The outside boundary of a sidewalk will be established by the manager to prevent irregularities in alignment with 

existing or proposed sidewalks. 

D. Property lines shall be determined at the expense of the owner of the property by a registered land surveyor. 

E. Curbs and gutters shall be constructed adjacent to sidewalks at the direction of the manager. 

F. Ramps and access shall be provided as directed by the manager. (Ord. 08-03-180) 

 

HBC 12.08.160 Utility installation. 

A. Aboveground Utilities. All poles or structures for utility lines, hydrants, and other public service facilities to be 

constructed above the level of the ground shall be placed between the sidewalk and the curb line if built on a street 

and within one foot of the boundary of any alley if built in an alley, unless specific authority is obtained from the 

assembly to do otherwise. 

B. Underground Utilities. A utility facility may be constructed, placed, or maintained along, under, or within a 

borough right-of-way only in accordance with regulations adopted by the borough and if authorized by a utility 

permit issued by the borough. Utility permits are valid for two years from the date of issuance. 

C. Access Easement. The borough retains a 10-foot easement on each side of, and perpendicular to, all borough-

owned sewer and water lines and associated appurtenances. (Ord. 08-03-180) 

 

HBC 12.08.170 Construction by parties other than the borough. 

Construction of streets, alleys, sidewalks, curbs, and other parts of such streets and alleys, exclusive of any utility 

lines, may be constructed by persons or corporations other than the borough at the owner’s expense or with borough 

contribution to the cost thereof as agreed by the assembly. All such construction must be in accordance with the 

requirements and specifications established by the manager, who shall put the same in writing at the request of any 

such builder. (Ord. 08-03-180) 

 

HBC 12.08.180 Fee schedule. 

The assembly may establish a fee schedule to cover costs related to road and sidewalk standard construction 

inspection. (Ord. 08-03-180) 

 

 

http://www.codepublishing.com/AK/HainesBorough/html/HainesBorough18/HainesBorough18.html#18


9A



 

 

Haines Borough 
Planning Commission Meeting 

September 11, 2014 
EXCERPT OF APPROVED MINUTES 

 

 

Present: Chairman Rob Goldberg, Commissioners Lee Heinmiller, Heather Lende, Andy 
Hedden, Robert Venables (called in), Danny Gonce, and Don Turner III. 

Staff Present: Stephanie Scott/Mayor, Tracy Cui/Planning & Zoning Technician III. 

Visitors Present: Don Hess, Karen Hess, Sean Gaffney, Margaret Friedenauer (KHNS), Karen 
Garcia (CVN), Eric Kocher, Ron Jackson, Glenda Gilbert, John Floreske, Vincent Simkin, Scott 
Sundberg, and Debra Schnabel (liaison), etc. 

 9. Unfinished Business 

A.  Replat of Primary School Subdivision 

After reviewing the memo provided by Cui, the commission made the following 
recommendations: 
 

1) Keep the 5th Avenue Right-of-Way, but place a barrier so that cars 
cannot drive from Main Street into the school parking lot; and  

2) Shift western property line of Lot 2 approximately 50 feet to the west 
and eliminate the lot line between Lots 1 and 2; and  

3) Shift western property line of Lot 3 approximately 50 feet to the west 
and make Lot 3 rectangular. A Memorandum of Understanding should 
be written to allow a portion of the running track to remain on Lot 3; and  

4) Connect Admin Building parking lot with the Library parking lot and 
make it one way; and  

5) The commission supports the idea of a safe walking route through this 
property, but recommends that it be postponed until after the property is 
re-platted; and  

6) Reserve a 20-foot wide easement for utilities along the southern 
boundary of Lot 8A; and 

7) Plat a new line from the northeast corner of Tract A-2 paralleling the 
north side of the running track and ending at a point on the western 
boundary of Lot 3. This will create a new Lot 4. Eliminate all lines south 
and west of this new line such that the southwest portion of Lot 4 and 
Lots 12, 13, 14, 15 and 16 become part of Tract A-2. This would make 
the running track part of the school property. 

   

          

 



 

 

Haines Borough 
Planning Commission Meeting 

March 12, 2015 
EXCERPT OF APPROVED MINUTES 

 

 

Present: Chairman Rob Goldberg, Commissioners Lee Heinmiller, Robert Venables (called in), 
Heather Lende (called in), Brenda Josephson, and Rob Miller. 

Staff Present: David Sosa/Manager, Tracy Cui/Planning and Zoning Technician III, and Bill 
Mandeville/Community and Economic Development Director. 

Visitors Present: Mike Case (Assembly liaison), Sierra Jimenez, Jolanta Ryan, Stephen Henri, 
Glenda Gilbert, Roger Schnabel, Dave Smith, and Jon Hirsh. 

 

 10D.  Other New Business 

1.  Primary School Preliminary Plat Review  

The commission reviewed the plat, and pointed out there was an error in the 
title block and the chairman’s name was misspelled. 

Cui said the surveyor re-surveyed the subdivision based on the 
recommendations from the commission. Additionally, lots within blocks 3 and 4 
are owned by the Borough and the school buildings were built on these lots. It 
was recommended to vacate these lot lines to consolidate them into one single 
lot. The commissioners spoke in favor of this recommendation. 

The commission also suggested keeping the library lot as rectangular. A 
Memorandum of Understanding (MOU)/easement can be written to allow one 
portion of the running track to remain on the library lot. 

Smith said an additional cost will be needed to complete the project.  

Cui said she will report these recommendations to the manager.  
    

          

 

















HBC 18.20.020 Definitions – Regulatory. 

“Foundation, permanent” means footings and foundations that shall be constructed of masonry, concrete; or treated wood as defined in the 

Uniform Building Code. Footings of concrete and masonry shall be of solid material. Foundations supporting wood shall extend at least six inches 

above the adjacent finished grade. Bearing walls shall be supported on masonry or concrete foundations or piles or other approved foundation 

systems of a sufficient size to support all loads. It is incumbent on the developer to assure that the foundation is properly designed and constructed. 

The Haines Borough accepts no responsibility for the stability or future salability of any building due to an improperly designed or constructed 

foundation. 

“Temporary use” means a building or structure that is capable of being immediately moved, or a use which is for a limited time up to 18 months. 

“Trailer” means a vehicular-type portable structure without motive power or a permanent foundation, which is meant to be towed or hauled by a 

motorized vehicle and is primarily designed as temporary living accommodations for recreational, camping and travel use. The term includes 

travel trailers, truck campers, fifth-wheel trailers and camping trailers. 

HBC 18.40.040 Temporary uses and buildings. 

A. A developer proposing a temporary use of land or building which would otherwise require an approval under provisions of this chapter is 

required to obtain a temporary use permit prior to any site work, except that temporary buildings associated with the construction of an approved 

use do not require a permit (i.e., tool shed, etc.). The manager may issue an approval under the same procedures as for a land use permit pursuant 

to HBC 18.40.030 and 18.60.020(H). No building or use requiring a variance shall be permitted under this section. 

B. Within five days of the expiration of a temporary use permit, all buildings and other materials associated with the temporary use shall be 

removed from the site and the site restored to the condition it was in prior to the development of the temporary use. 

HBC 18.70.040 Zoning use chart. 

ZONING USE CHART 

TOWNSITE PLANNING/ZONING DISTRICT 

  

10B1

http://www.codepublishing.com/AK/HainesBorough/html/HainesBorough18/HainesBorough1840.html#18.40.030
http://www.codepublishing.com/AK/HainesBorough/html/HainesBorough18/HainesBorough1860.html#18.60.020


UBR = Use-By-Right CU = Conditional Use NA = Not Allowed GFA = Gross Floor Area

 

Under General Classification, uses in UPPER CASE are primary and uses in lower case are secondary. 

GENERAL 

CLASSIFICATION

 

INDUSTRIAL USES COMMERCIAL/ Residential Uses 
RESIDENTIAL 

USES ONLY 

RESIDENTIAL/ 

Commercial Uses 

RECREATIONAL 

USE 

Specific Zoning 

Districts  

  

  

  

USES  

Heavy 

Industrial 

Light 

Industrial/ 

Commercial 

Waterfront  

Industrial 
Commercial Waterfront 

Significant  

Structures 

Area 

Single  

Residential  

Multiple  

Residential 

Rural 

Residential 

Rural 

Mixed 

Use  

Multiple 

Use  
Recreational 

I/H I/L/C I/W C W SSA SR MR RR RMU MU REC 

Commercial, Light – 

Less than 500 sf 
CU UBR CU UBR UBR UBR NA CU UBR UBR UBR NA 

Commercial, Medium 

– 500 – 5,000 sf 
CU UBR CU UBR CU CU NA NA CU CU UBR NA 

Commercial, Major – 
More than 5,000 sf 

UBR UBR UBR UBR CU CU NA NA NA NA UBR NA 

Temporary Structure UBR UBR UBR UBR CU CU UBR UBR UBR UBR UBR CU 

Temporary Use UBR UBR UBR UBR CU CU UBR UBR UBR UBR UBR CU 

Trailer*/Mobile 

Home Outside Mobile 

Home Park 

NA NA  NA  NA NA NA NA NA NA NA UBR NA 

* Exception: Recreational trailers parked but not used for habitation or storage. 


	10-15-2015 Agenda
	Sep 10, 2015 pc minutes
	Oct 15, 2015 Staff report
	8A: HARK
	8B: Heliport
	8C: Hill Top Sub.
	9A: Primary School
	10B1: Temp. Commercial Structure



